
 Faculty Senate Archives 

 Faculty Senate       Academic year 1992-1993 

Volume VI 

Agenda and Minutes       
of the Meeting of October 19, 1992 

Additional information: Digitized by University Libraries Technical 
Services and archived in SOAR: Shocker Open Access Repository at: 
http://soar.wichita.edu/handle/10057/14178  

http://soar.wichita.edu/handle/10057/14178


' • 

,i 

,: • 

• 

AGENDA 

FACULTY SENATE 
The Wichita State University 

Room 126 CH 

Meeting Notice: Monday, October 19, 1992 

Order of Business: 

I. 

II 

III. 

IV. 

V. 

Calling of the Meeting to Order 

Informal Statements and Proposals 

President's Report 

Approval of Minutes 

Old Business 

3:30 p.m. 

President Armstrong will make comments regarding Program Review. 
(3:30 - 3:45) 

VI. New Business 

Brad Fenwick, President of the Faculty Senate at Kansas State 
University will talk to the Senate about governance procedures 
(3:45 - 5:00) 

VII. Adjournment 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

Kathryn Griffith, President 3165 Box 17 
Keith Williamson, Vice President 3185 Box 31 
Joyce Cavarozzi, Secretary 3541 Box 53 
James Clark, President-Elect 3220 Box 78 
Albert Gosman, Elected by Senate 3402 Box 35 
John Dreifort, Elected by Senate 3150 Box 45 
Elmer Hoyer, Apptd by Sen. Pres. 3415 Box 44 
A. J. Mandt, Past President 3125 Box 74 . 



• 

• 

• 

FACULTY SENATE 
The Wichita State University 

Minutes of the Meeting of October 19, 1992 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Allen, R. Armstrong, Bair, Bajaj, Behrman, Benson, Berger, 
Billings, Brady, Campbell, Carroll, Clark, Daugherty, Davis, Dreifort, Duell, 
Erickson, Farnsworth, Fisher, Gosman, Griffith, Gythiel, Hawley, Horn, Hoyer, 
Hundley, Jeffers, Kahn , Koppenhaver, Mandt, Masud, Merriman, Moore, Murdock 
Murphey, Parkhurst, Pitetti, Romig, Sheffield Sweney, Teshome, Wherritt, Widener, 
Williamson, Yeager 
MEMBERS ABSENT: Alexander, Bereman, Burk, Cavarozzi, Chopra, Furtwengler, 
Martin, May, Shanahan, Thomson, Zytkow 
GUESTS: No signatures 

I. CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER. The meeting was called to order by President 
Griffith at 3:30 p.m. 

President Griffith asked for a change in the agenda order for the Senate 
to proceed directly to New Business. She explained that President Armstrong was 
not able to meet with the Faculty Senate regarding the Program Review. The 
members present agreed to the change. 

II. NEW BUSINESS. President Griffith introduced Brad Fenwick, President of the 
Faculty Senate at KSU. He was invited to speak on faculty governance at K • 
State. 

He said he'd be speaking on the sense of how things operated rather than 
the mechanics of them. They do have shared governance. The administration at 
KSU consults on all matters with the faculty. The faculty in turn feels it's 
their right to participate. The administration at upper levels feels its 
strength is with the faculty, including salaries and how they are distributed. 
The faculty handbook is sacred and not to be violated. Policies and procedures 
are updated frequently. 

Senator Kahn asked if ,the administration had the right of approval of the 
Faculty Handbook. President Fenwick replied that the KSU President has no veto 
on what is in the handbook. He may suggest but not dictate. Senator Merriman 
asked about the process of evaluation above the dean's level. The reply was that 
it was done by the President and Provost. It isn't done by the faculty, although 
it can do a vote of no confidence. The KSU faculty is very assertive. They 
realize that they can make a difference. The administration realizes that they 
can't do anything without the faculty. So, now it is a cooperative process. 

Senator Farnsworth asked if their selection process is satisfactory. 
President Fenwick replied that often you settled for who you can get, usually 
salary-wise. They do monitor salary closely. Senator Sheffield asked how they 
achieve consensus. The reply was that faculty won't leave the warmth of their 
"bedfellows" since they control what goes on. Senator Murphey asked what was 
meant by a vote of "no confidence." The reply was "just that." 

Senator Duell asked how the KSU program review was done. President Fenwick 
answered that the administration had stayed at arms length. They won't guess 
what the faculty thinks. The President will not reject what the faculty 
suggests. He added that the KSU President doesn't meddle internally; he is an 



• 

• 

• 

"outside" person. The Vice Presidents are not tenured nor do they have faculty 
rank. The Provost does, however. Senator Merriman asked if the Provost had 
input in the process. The answer was no. The Provost serves as a buffer between 
the President and the faculty. He will pose questions but not answers. Senator 
Merriman asked about maintaining the status quo as an answer to program review. 
President Fenwick said that was what was proposed. 

President Fenwick said that the KSU faculty have a role in setting 
salaries. The average faculty salary increase has to meet the average 
administration increase, excepting that of the President. The administration, 
therefore, has downsized positions in order to give increases. All promotions 
have salary increases. They take 1/2 of 1% from the top to fund them. For 
example, promotion from assistant professor to associate professor has a $5,000 
increase and that is above and beyond any merit increase. The system helps to 
forestall salary compression. 

Senator Horn wanted to know what would happen if they had a "maverick" 
provost. The reply was a vote of "no confidence." Senator Gosman asked how they 
go about the selection process for higher administrators. The Board of Regents 
says who wi 11 be on the committee to select a president. President Fenwick 
answered that their present president has a good sense of whom to put on a 
committee. Senator Billings asked if there was a lot of turn over in 
administrative positions. She was told that there hadn't been much since the 
change in the senate. Senator Billings wanted to know what one looks for in an 
administrator. President Fenwick said they look for someone with academic 
feelings and with no big agenda. Anyone who wants to be an administrator 
shouldn't be one. Senator Merriman asked what would happen if KSU's president 
said l sign, I decide. The reply was that everything would come to a stop . 
Senator Merriman then asked if there were any divisions in the faculty. The 
answer was yes there are, especially with the T&P guidelines. 

Senator Merriman asked if the Regents would go along with a vote of "no 
confidence." The reply was that there would be anarchy if they didn't. 

Senator Wherritt asked if their president ever has to confer with legal 
council on decisions. President Fenwick said that hadn't happened. Pol icy 
making committees do confer with counci 1, however, but not the president. 
Senator Gosman inquired if the president and senate were not in agreement could 
the senate use counci 1. The answer was yes. Truth is more important than 
position. 

President Fenwick moved on to discuss shared governance and morale. KSU 
does a yearly report on faculty morale. Although it is poor on compensation, it 
is top on the national level in satisfaction with governance. Senator Mandt 
commented that the problem with decentralized governance is inertia. The reply 
was that the faculty does worry especially with tough decisions. About 7% of the 
budget gets moved around. The proposal to close a college two years ago didn't 
go well because the process hadn't been adhered to. It was a good idea that may 
have happened if the proper procedure had· been followed. Senator Kahn asked who 
had input into the redistribution. The answer was it came from both faculty and 
administration. The redistribution is a stop-gap system as enrollment changes 
from college to college. 

The question of who has final authority of what goes into the handbook has 
already been answered. 

Senator Merriman wanted to know who has input into the Endowment 
Association. President Fenwick replied that the endowment at KSU is organized 
differently than at WSU. For example, the endowment gave a six figure loan to 

2 



' 

• 

• 

the Athletic Department. The Faculty Senate was all over the administration and 
called them on the carpet about sacrificing academics for athletics. As it 
turned out the loan was made appropriately. The endowment association asks first 
now. 

Senator Masud asked how does the Faculty Senate get student input. The 
answer was that Faculty Senate members go to the Student Senate and visa versa. 
There is good rapport and support. 

Senator Duell asked if in a dean's search, what restrictions go on salary 
caps. President Fenwick answered with a question. Is it all right to pay a new 
dean more than a provost? Yes, usually it's OK. If there is only one choice 
from the candidates, usually they send for more. Senator Duell asked if the 
person is hired, does that mean a raise for the administration. The reply was 
no. They can reset the base but can't take money from the academic pool. 

Senator Kahn asked if grievances were ever overruled by the administration. 
The reply was never. Usually they can't overrule the department and college 
tenure and promotion committees. 

Senator Billings asked if there were attempts to equalize salaries across 
departments. President Fenwick answered that salary compression is a struggle. 
Assistant professors often come in with more money than associate professors. 
They use enrollment adjustment money to add to base budget for salary. Senator 
Billings then asked if there was a process to apply. The answer was no. The 
process could be blanket or selective. It is blind to age or sex. KSU hasn't 
done a study on the effect of sa 1 ary and gender. Senator Merriman wanted to know 
how many women were full professors. President Fenwick replied that more and 
more positions are using temporaries and part-time; even graduate students. 

Senator Merriman wanted to know about teaching load increases. The reply 
was that KSU has the highest teaching load of the Regents' institutions. Some 
programs have raised their GPAs to limit enrollment. The future looks difficult 
with increased number of students. 

Senator Romig asked what they do about co 11 eges that vote as b 1 ocks. 
President Fenwick said that hadn't happened. Some lobbying does occur but again 
consensus is important. 

Senator Horn asked if KSU had a formal workload policy. President Fenwick 
said that each college has a full load policy. The Faculty Senate thinks you 
should only teach a full load and not exceed it. Full load, for example, in Arts 
and Sciences is 9 hours. In colleges with research duties, the load is less. 
Some faculty ''.buy out" of teaching. Senator Merriman asked if it is possible for 
their Provost to mandate a 12 hour load. The reply was no. It is a negotiable 
thing. Senator Gosman asked what would happen if the Provost did. The reply was 
that there would be anarchy and no Provost. Senator Gosman commented that it 
seemed strange that their relationship is only 5 to 6 years old. How is it 
possible? President Fenwick answered that the administration knows that the 
power to get things done is through faculty cooperation. ' 

Senator Erickson asked if there was a way around that all raises be merit. 
President Fenwick said that at KSU they were trying to achieve that. Merit is 
especially crazy in small departments. Awards can be given from our endowment. 
Senator Gosman remarked our endowment? The answer is yes. Both the faculty and 
students play a major role in the collection of funds. The money collected 
belongs to the department. The endowment foundation keeps only 2% off the top 
and turns 5% into the base. Each college has a person dedicated to raising 
money. 

• Senator Farnsworth commented that there hadn't been any mention of 

3 



• 

• 

• 

competition between graduate and undergraduate programs. The reply was that 
there is some competition. Usually the professional colleges are on top so the 
College of Arts and Sciences suffers. Therefore, each college gives some off the 
top to the Arts and Sciences. Senator Farnsworth asked if any PhD programs 
were sacrificed. The answer was yes; in English a few years back and they are 
talking about some professional programs. Senator Fisher asked how are the 
decisions made. The reply was by the faculty. Senator Merriman asked if they 
have much pressure from interest groups. President Fenwick said that they have 
lots. The faculty, though, takes the responsibility for the decisions. The 
dean's "retirement" from Agriculture came largely from outside. Senator Horn 
asked about the newspaper. The rep 1 y was that their paper is a joke. The 
principal voice is the campus newspaper. The students send the message for the 
public to get angry at the Regents or the Legislature, not at the faculty or 
administration. 

President Griffith asked about KSU's University Counci 1. President Fenwick 
said that the Faculty Senate has two standing committees: Faculty Affairs and 
Academic Affairs. Under these committees are other standing and ad hoc 
committees such as the handbook committee, salary committee, etc. The third 
committee is the Faculty Senate Committee on Planning. Their Executive Committee 
has members from all the colleges. It serves as a "brain trust" to the 
President. The Leadership Group is the Faculty Senate President, Vice President, 
President Elect and Past President. It interacts with the President and Vice 
President and is a "tough talk" group. It deals with the especially 
controversial things. Senator Billings said it sounded too good to be true. 
What groups are now alienated? The reply was that deans were in the past. Now 
they sit on the Faculty Senate with a vote. Probably the groups that now feel 
alienated are the programs being downsized and disbanded. 

Senator Merriman asked if elections for Faculty Senate are contested. The 
answer was no. A person can serve two terms then must sit out a year. Senator 
Romig asked how the officers were elected. The answer was by the Faculty Senate. 

Senator Campbell asked how is KSU's tenure and _ promotion process. 
President Fenwick replied that each unit (department) sets its own criteria for 
tenure and promotion. The dean sees that the criteria are met. Senator Murphey 
asked if there was an emphasis on referred journals. The reply was that it 
depends on the department. Some have criteria statements about journals. The 
faculty decided that they couldn't compare departments, so let the departments 
do it. 

President Griffith thanked Brad Fenwick for sharing the KSU governance 
experience with us. 

Senator Erickson asked what had happened to President Armstrong. President 
Griffith said that he was unable to attend. He was meeting with the deans and 
vice presidents about program review. He had wanted to meet with us. He will 
try to discuss his recommendations with the Executive Committee. 

The meeting was adjourned at 5:00 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Jolynne Campbell, Acting Secretary 
Faculty Senate 

4 


	Agenda, October 19, 1992
	Mintues, October 19, 1992



